
RSM Azerbaijan LLC



11__
RSM

THE POWER 0F BEING UNDERSTOOD



"CITY FINANCE NBCO" LLC
Financial statements togetlier with
Independent audjtor's repoi.t

Year ended December 31,  2024



Contents

Statement of management's responsibilities for the preparation and approval of the financial statements

Independent auditor' s report

Financial statem ents

Statement of financial position

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Statement of changes in equity

Statement of cash flows

Notes to the financial statements 5-40



STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE PREPARATION AND APPROVAL
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TI]E YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

The following statement, which should be read in conjunction with the independent auditors' responsibilities
stated in the independent auditors' report set out (on page  I  of report) is made with a view to distinguishing
the  respective  responsibilities  of the management and those  of the  independent auditors  in relation  to  the
financial statements of "City Finance NBCO" LLC (the "Company").

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial  statements that present fairly the flnancial
position of the Company as at December 31, 2024 the result so  fits  operations,  cash flows and changes  in
equity for the year ended, in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS").

[n preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for:

• Selecting suitable accounting principles and applying them consistently;
• Making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
• Stating whether IFRS  have been followed, subject to any material  departures disclosed and   explained in
the financial statements; and
• Preparing the financial statement so on going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business for the foreseeable future.

Management is also responsible for:

• Designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and sound system of internal controls, throughout
the Company;
• Maintaining proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial

position of the Company, and which enable them to ensure that the financial statements of the Company
comply with IFRS;
• Maintaining  statutory accounting records  incompliance  with  legislation  and  accounting  standards  of the
countries where Company's entities operate;
• Taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Company; and
• Detecting and preventing fraud, errors and other irregularities.

The financial statements for the year ended December 31. 2024 were authorized for issue on May  15, 2025
by the Management of the Company.

On behalf of the Management:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR`S REPORT

To the Management and the Board of Trustees of "City Finance NBCO" LLC

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of "City Finance NBCO" LLC (the "Company"), which comprise the
statement of financial  position at year ended December 31, 2024 and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standarts.

In  our opinion,  the  accompanying  financial  statements  present  fairly,  in  all  material  respects,  the  financial
position of the Company at year ended December 31, 2024 and its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standarts.

Basis for Opinion

We  conducted our audit  in  a.ccordance  with  [ntemational  Standards  on  Auditing  (ISAs).  Our responsibilities
under  those  standards  are  further  described  in  the  Auditors'  Responsibilities  for  the  audit  of the  Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the lntemational Ethics
Standards Board for Aceountants'  Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Respon§ibi]ities of Management Board and the Board of Trustees for the Financial Statements

Management  Board  is  responsible  for the  preparation  and  fair presentation  of the  financial  statements  in
accordance with lFRS, and for such internal control as Management Board detemines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial  statements, Management Board is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Management Board and Board of Trustees is responsible for overseeing the Company' s financial reporting
process.

THE POWER OF BEING  UNDERSTOOD

AUDIT  I  TAX  I  CONSULTING

RSM Azerbaijan is d member of the F!SM network and trades as RSM  RSM is the tradlng r`ame used by ttie members of the FisM net work  Each member of the PSM network is an independent
accounting  and  consulting firm  which  pract)ce5  in  Its own right   The PSM  r`etwork  ls  nc)t  Itself a  separate legal  entity in any |urisdiction
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors'  report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud  or  error  and  are  considered  material  if,  individually  or  in  the  aggregate,  they  could  reasonably  be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from  fraud  is  higher than  for one resulting  from  error,  as  fraud may  involve  collusion,  forgery,  intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internaL control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by managemerit.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management Board's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.  If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures
in the flnancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based  on  the  audit  evidence  obtained  up  to  the  date  of our  auditors'  report.  However,  future  events  or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with the members of the Management Board regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemal
control that we identify during our audit.

May  15, 2025

Baku, Azerbaijan Republic

TesMAzerbatjaw



"CITY FINANCE NBCO" LLC

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024
(_A±p!g}!:n_t_s presented are in Azerbaijani rl'ranats, unless otherwise slaled)

Notes                  Decent)er 31. 2024 December 31, 2023

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and leasings to customers
Property and equipments
Intangible asset
Right of use assets
Deferred tax assets
Other assets

327,394
29, I 27,672

68,698
82,698

174,055
84,566

723,712

274,368
24,202,456

44,695
91,874

261,321

51 ,24 I

654,600
Total assets 30,588,795 25,580,S55

Equity
Charter capital
Retained eamin

5,000,000                                       5 ,000,000
3667

Total e 15,220J66 12,658,660

Liabilities
Term  borrowings
Amounts due to related parties
Debt securities in issue
Current income tax  liability
Lease  liability
Other liabilities

6,567,783
6,390,572
I,841,223

148,652
233,282

3,909,387
8,344,402

82,768
3 31,61 0

Total liabilities
Total c and lial)ilities

Approved for issue and signed on behalf of the Management on May  15, 2025.

The notes set out on pages 5 to 40 form an integral part of these financial  statements.
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``CITY FINANCE NBCO'' LLC

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

(4_mounts presented are in A=erbaijani manats,  unless o!herwise s(aled)

Notes
For tlie year ended
December 31. 2024

For tl.e year ended
Decem b€r 31, 2023

Interest income                                                                                                      17                                           7,171,830                                         6,249,817
Interest ex ense                                                                                                        17 638,527 322,652
Net mar in on interest income 6,533J03                                 5,927,165

ected credit loss chare8 516,982 782,130
Net margin on interest income after €xpect€d credit
loss char 6,016321 5,145,035

Administrative and other operating expenses
Fee and commission expenses

n exchan e translation  loss

(2,580,926)
(248.602)

( I,765,502)
( 136,527)

Profit before income tax                                                                                                      3 180,952                                    3,240,036

orate income tax ex ense                                                             20 619,246 689,2 I 3
Profit for the 2.561'706 2,550,823

2,550,823Total com rellensive income for the 2'561,706

Approved for issue and signed on behalf of the Management on May  15, 2025.

The notes set out on pages 5 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements
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"CITY FINANCE NBCO" LLC

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

(L4Pprpts presented are in Azerbaijani manats, unless otherwise stated)

Charter ca ital             Retained earmin s                        Total e

As at December 31, 2022 S'000,000 5,107'837 10'107.837

2,550,823Total com rehensive income for the 2,550,823

As at Deceml)er 31, 2023

Total com

5,000.000 7,658,660                             12,658

2,56 I ,706rehensive income for the 2.561,706

As at December 31, 2024 5,000,000 10220,366 15,220,366

Approved for issue and signed on behalf of the Management on May  15, 2025.

The notes §ct out on pages 5 to 40 form an integral pan of these financial statements.
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"CITY FINANCE NBCO" LLC

STATEMENT 0F CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024
(Anrounts presented are in A=erbaijani manats, unless o[hervise slated)

Notes        I:°rlh?yea.I.eTq:i      Fortll€yea_reTqeq
December3l, 2024      Decemb€r31' 2023

Casti flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax

Adyuslment for  rlon-cash items:
Expected credit loss charge
Depreciati on and amortization
Depreciation of right of use assets
Interest expense
Interest income

n exchari e translation  loss, net

3,180.952                           3,240,036

5 16,982
20,569
87,266

638,527

(7,171,830)
5,841

782,130
11,201

87,027
322,652

(6,249,817)
2,970

I,803,Sol

Cash flows used in opal.ating activities before cllanges in
assets and liabilities 2,721,693

Increase in loan and  leasings to customers
Decrease/ (increase) in other assets
Increase in other liabilities

(5,09],765)
(69,I I 2)

(822,784)
539

162, I 97

2,463,849Net cash used in o activities before tax 7,949£81

Income tax paid
tnterest expense paid on lease  liability
Interest expense paid on term borrowing
Interest expenses paid on bonds issued
Interest received

(586,687)
(2:J ,979)

(408,748)
( 192,841 )
6,821,397

( I,027,992)
(37,278)

(288,096)

Net cash used in /f'rom   o activities 2J44239 I,991,418

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of properties and equipment

uisition of intan ible assets
(35,396) (21,493)

Net casli used in investin activities

Casl] flows from rinancing activities
Proceeds from term borrowings
Repayment of term borrowi ngs
lssuance of debt securities
Reayment of debt seculities
Repayment amounts due to related parties

aid  on  lease liabilit

6,102,937

(3,450,277)
2,003,000

( 165,000)
( I ,953,830)

2,079,950

( I I 7,264)

(3,708,155)

Net cash  from / financin activities 2,438502

(5,841 )
53'026

I,820,338

( 192)
88'606

Effect Of exchange rate changes on the balance Of cash held in
I;oreign curre nc ies
Net increase in cast) and cash e uivalents

Cash and caslt e uivalents at tl]e start of the 274j68
327,394

18S,762
274368Casli and cash e uiva[ents at tlie end of tlle

Approved for issue and signed on behalf of the Management on May  15, 2025.

The



"CITY FINANCE NBCO" LLC
NOTES T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TI]E YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024
(Amounts presented are in Azerbaitiani manats, unless olperwise stated)

I.         Introduction

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards
for the year ended December 31, 2024 for "City Finance NBCO" LLC(`the Company").

The Comi)any was  incorporated and is domiciled in the Republic of Azei.baijan.  The Company  is an closed

joint stock company and was set up in accordance with Azerbaijani regulations CJSC.

Ownership structure of the Company

Company is wholly owned by shareholders. The shareholders of the Company are as follows:

December 31, 2024                             December31, 2023

%                  Amount%               Am ount
"AGA Group of companies" CJSC

Habib Zadeh Mohammad Reza Parviz
Total share ca

72. 5               3,625,000
27.5

72.5                  3,625,000
I,375,000                            27.5 I,3 75,000

5'000'0005,000'000                         loo

Principal activity

The  Company's  principal  business  activity  is  lending  operations  within  the  Republic  of Azerbaijan.  The
Company was registered by the Ministry of Taxes of the Republic of Azerbaijan on October 03, 2013  under
thename"CityFinanceNBCO"LLCandtheimmediateownerandultimatecontrollingpartyoftheCompany
isDemirchifamily.TheCompanyhasbeenoperatingonthebasisoflicenseNo.BKT-20issuedbytheCentra]
Bank of the Republic of Azerbaijan ("CBAR") since January 7, 2014.

The Company had 76 employees at December 31, 2024 (2023: 67employees).

Registered address and place of business

The Company's registered address is: Khatai district,  Khocali 37, Azl 025, Baku, the Republic of Azerbaijan.

TheCompany'splaceofbusinessis:TheDemirchiTower,15thfloor,Khocali37,AZ1025,Baku,theRepublic
ofAzerbaijan.

Presentation cu rrency

These financial statements are presented in Azerbaijani Manats ("AZN"), unless otherwise stated.

2.        Operating environment of the company

Azerbaijan's   economy,   like   many   emerging   markets,   continues   to   be   influenced   dy   global   economic
conditions,  government  policies,  and  fluctuations  in  energy  prices.  While  the  country  remains  focused  on
economic  diversification,  maintaining  stability  in  key  sectors  is  crucial  for  long-term  growth.  The  future
trajectory  of Azerbaijan's economy largely depends on the  effectiveness of fiscal  and  monetary  policies,  as
well as crude oil prices and the stability of the national currency.

In 2024, Azerbaijan's GDP reached AZN  126.3 bimon (USD 74.3 I)illion), reflecting a 2.7% growth
compared to the previous year. Throughout 2024, economic performance was shaped by both external and
domestic factors. Although fluctuations in global commodity prices and geopolitical uncertainties presented
challenges,Azerbaijanbenefitedfromafavorabletradeenvironment.Thecountrymaintainedastrong
foreign trade turnover, recording a trade surplus of USD 5.5 billion in 2024

Strategic foreign exchange reserves saw a notable increase, reaching USD  10.9 billion by November 2024,
surpassing intemationally recognized sufficiency levels and reinforcing the stability of the Azerbaijani
manat.
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``CITY FINANCE NBCO" LLC

NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDEI) DECEMBER 31, 2024
(Amounts presented are in A=erbaijani mana[s,u±therwisesla[ed)

2.        Operating environment of the company (continued)

The Central Bank of Azerbaijan continued its efforts to manage inflation and ensure macroeconomic
stability. In 2023, the annual inflation rate stood at 9.5%, but by the end of 2024, inflation had eased to
4.9%, aligning with the Central Bank's target range of 4±2%. Key price changes included a 5.5% increase
for food, 2.4% for non-food products, and 6.3% for services. To futher support price stability, the
reflnancing rate was adjusted to 7.25% by the end of 2024, down from 8% in 2023.

International credit rating agencies continued to assess Azerbaijan.s economic outlook.  In 2023, Fitch and
S&P assigned a "88+" rating to Azerbaijan. while Moody's maintained a Bal  rating. In 2024, these
assessments reflected stronger confidence in Azerbaijan's fiscal policies and external balances. "Fitch
Ratings" upgraded Azerbaijan to 888-, citing sound fiscal management and positive economic
fundamentals. Moody's revised its outlook to "positive" (Bal , "positive"), while S&P reaffirmed its 88+/8
rating with a stable outlook.

Despite these positive economic indicators, uncertainties remain. External risks, including fluctuations in

global energy prices, geopolitical developments, and inflationary pressures, may impact financial stability.
However.theongoingimplementationofeconomicpoliciesandmonetarymeasuresisexpectedtohelp
mitigate these risks.

The Company remains vigilant in monitoring macroeconomic trends to safeguard financial resilience and
ensure long-term sustainability. As economic conditions evolve, management is prepared to adapt strategies
proactively to maintain stability and support sustainable growth.

3.         Materialaccounting policies

Basis of preparation

These  financial  statements  have  been  prepared  in  accordance  with  IFRS  Accounting  Standarts  under  the
historical cost convention, as modified by the initial recognition of financial instruments based on fair value.
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.

Currency indicator

The national currency of the Republic ofAzerhaijan is the Azerbaijani manat ("AZN"), and the manat is the
Company's  functional  currency  and  presentation  currency  for  current  financial  repoiiing  purposes.  These

preliminary financial statements are presented in Azerbaijani Manats ("AZN"), unless otherwise stated.

Financial instruments - key measureinent terms

Faj.r  va/"  is  the price that  would  be  received  to  sell  an asset or paid  to transfer a liability  in  an  orderly
transactionbetweenmarketparticipantsatthemeasui.ementdate.Thebestevidenceoffairvalueispriceinan
activemarket.Anactivemarketisoneinwhichtransactionsfortheassetorliabilitytakeplacewithsufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Fairvalueoffinancialinstrumentstradedinanactivemarketismeasuredastheproductofthequotedprice
fortheindividualassetorliabilityandthequantityheldbytheentity.Thisisthecaseevenifamarket'snormal
daily trading  volume  is not sufficient to absorb the quantity  held and  placing orders to sell the position  in a
single transaction might affect the quoted price.

A portfolio of other financial  assets and  liabilities that are not traded in an active market is  measured at the
fairvalueofagroupoffinancialassetsandfinancialliabilitiesonthebasisofthepricethatwouldbereceived
to sell  a net long  position (i.e.  an asset) for a particular risk exposure or paid to transfer a net short position
(i.e.  a  liability)  for  a  particular  risk  exposure  in  an  orderly  transaction  between  market  participants  at  the
measurement date.



"CITY FINANCE NBCO" LLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THF YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024
(Arnoun[s presenled are in A-.erbaijanimanals, u±lherwiseslated)

3.         Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments -key measilrememt tei.ms (continued)

This is applicable for assets carried at fair value on a recundng basis if the Company: (a) manages the group
of financial assets and financial  liabilities on the basis of the entity's net exposure to a particular mal.ket risk
(or risks)  or to  the  credit  risk  of a particular counterparty  in  accordance  with  the  entity's  documented  risk
management or investment strategy;  (b)  it provides  information on that basis  about the group of assets  and
liabilitiestotheentity'skeymanagementpersonnel;and(c)themarketrisks,includingdurationoftheentity's
exposure  to  a particular market  risk  (or risks)  arising  from  the  financial  assets  and  financial  liabilities  are
substantially the same.

Valuationtechniquessuchasdiscountedcashflowmodelsormodelsbasedonrecentarm'slengthtransactions
or consideration of financial data of the investees are used to fair value certain financial instruments for which
external market pricing information is not available. Fair value measurements are analysed by level in the fair
value hierarchy as follows:

(i)levelonearemeasurementsatquotedprices(unadjusted)inactivemarketsforidenticalassetsorliabilities,
(ii) level  two  measul.ements  are  valuations  techniques  with  all  material  inputs  observable  for  the  asset  or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices), and

(iii)  level  three  measurements   are  valuations  not  based  on  solely  observat)le  market  data  (that  is,  the
measui.ement requires significant unobservable  inputs).  Transfers between  levels of the  fair value hierarchy
are deemed to have occurred at the end of the reporting period.

rra#5acJi.oz cos/5 are incremental  costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal  of a
financial  instrument. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the transaction had not
taken place.  Transaction  costs  include  fees  and commissions  paid to agents (including employees  acting  as
selling  agents),  advisors,  brokers  and  dealers,  levies  by  regulatory  agencies  and  securities  exchanges,  and
transfer taxes  and  duties.  Transaction  costs  do  not  include  de6t  premiums  or  discounts,  financing  costs  or
internal administrative or holding costs.

4morfi.zedcost/ZCJistheanountatwhichthefinancialinstrumentwasrecognizedatinitialrecognitionless
anyprincipalrepayments,plusaccruedinterest,andforfinancialassetslessanyallowanceforexpectedcredit
losses. Accrued  interest includes amortization of transaction costs defeITed at  initial  recognition  and of any
premium or discount to maturity amount using the effective interest method.

Accruedinterestincomeandaccruedinterestexpense,includingbothaccruedcouponandamortizeddiscount
or premium (including  fees deferred at origination,  if any),  are not presented separately and are  included in
the canying values of related items in the statement of financial position.

77ie  ejorecfj.ve  I.#fereff me/Aod is a method of allocating  interest  income or interest expense over the relevant

periodsoastoachieveaconstantperiodicrateofinterest(effectiveinterestrate)onthecanyingamount.

The  effective  interest  rate  is  the  rate  that  exactly  discounts  estimated  future  cash  payments  or  receipts
(excluding  future credit  losses) through  the  expected  life  of the  financial  instrument  or a  shorter period,  if
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial  instrument.

Financial instrumeiits initial recognition

FinancialinstrumentsatFVTPLareinitiallyrecordedatfairvalue.Anotherfinancialinstrumentsareinitially
recordedatfairvalueplustransactioncosts.Fairvalueatinitialrecognitionisbestevidencedbythetrausaction
price.  A  gain  or  loss  on  initial  recognition  is  only  recorded  if there  is  a  difference  between  fair value  and
transaction  price  which  can  be  evidenced  by  other  observable  cuiTent  market  transactions  in  the  same
instrument or by a valuation technique whose inputs include only data from observable markets.



"CITY FINANCE NBCO" LLC

NOTES T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024
(Amounts presented are in A=erbaijani manats, unless olherw.Ise slated)

3.         Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments initial recognition (continued)

After  the  initial  recognition,  an  ECL  allowance  is  recognised  for  financial  assets  measured  at  AC  and
investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI, resulting in an immediate accounting loss.

All purchases and sales of financial assets that require delivery within the timeframe established by regulation
or market convention ("regular way" purchases and  sales) are recorded at trade date,  which  is the date on
which the Company commits to deliver a financial asset. All other purchases are recognised when the entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets -classirication and subsequent measurement -measurement categories

The Company classifies and measures financial assets at AC. The classification and subsequent measurement
ofdebtfinancialassetsdependsom(i)theCompany'sbusinessmodelformanagingtherelatedassetsportfolio
and (ii) the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

Financial assets -cJassif]cation and subsequent measLtrement -business model

The business model reflects how the Company manages the assets in order to generate cash flows - whether
the Company's objective is:  (i)  solely to collect the contractual  cash  flows  from the assets ("hold to collect
contractual cash flows",) or (ii) to collect both the contractual cash flows and the cash flows arising from the
sale of assets ("hold to collect contractual cash flows and sell") or,  if neither of (i) and (ii) is applicable, the
financial assets are classified as part of "other" business model and measured at FVTPL.

Business model is determined for a group of assets (on a portfolio level) based on all relevant evidence about
the activities that the Company  undertakes  to achieve the objective set out  for the portfolio available at the
date of the assessment.

Factors considered by the Company in determining the business model  include the purpose and composition
of a portfolio, past experience on how the cash flows for the respective assets were collected, how risks are
assessed and managed, how the assets' performance is assessed.

Refer to Note 4 for critical judgements applied by the Company in detemining the business models for its
financial assets.

Where the business model  is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to hold contractual cash flows
and  sell,  the  Company  assesses  whether the  cash  flows  represent  solely  payments  of principal  and  interest
("Sppl„).

Financial assets -classification and subsequent measurement -cash flow cliaracteristics

Where the contractual  terms  introduce exposure to risk or volatility that is inconsistent with a basic  lending
arrangement, the financial asset is classified and measured at FVTPL. The SPPI assessment is performed on
initial  recognition of an  asset and  it is  not subsequently  reassessed.  Refer to Note 4  for critical judgements
applied by the Company in performing the SPPI test for its financial assets.

Financial assets -reclassification

Financial  instruments  are reclassified  only  when the business  model  for managing the  portfolio as a whole
changes.Thereclassificationhasaprospectiveeffectandtakesplacefromthebeginningofthefirstreporting
period that follows after the change in the business model. The Company did not change  its business model
during the cunent and comparative period and did not make any reclassifications.



"CITY FINANCE NBCO" LLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3] , 2024
(_Ape_unls presenled are in A-.erbaij ani manals,unless  olherwise  stated)

3.         Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets impairment -Expected credit loss allowance

The  Company  assesses,  on  a  forward-looking  basis,  the  ECL  for  debt  instruments  measured  at  AC.  The
Company measures  ECL and recognises credit  loss  allowance  at each reporting date.  The measurement of
ECL  reflects:  (i)  an  unbiased  and  probability  weighted  amount that  is  determined by evaluating a range  of

possible  outcomes,  (ii)  time  value  of money  and  (iii)  all  reasonable  and  supportable  information  that  is
available without undue cost and effort at the end of each reporting period about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future conditions.

Debt instruments measured at AC are presented in the statement of financial position net of the allowance for
ECL.

The  Company  applies  a three  stage  model  for impairment,  based  on  changes  in  credit  quality  since  initial
recognition.  A  financial  instrument that  is  not credit-impaired on  initial  recognition is classified in  Stage  I.
Financial assets in Stage  I  have their ECL measured at an  amount equal to the portion of lifetime ECL that
results  from  default events possible within the next  12  months  or until  contractual  maturity,  if shorter ("12
Months   ECL").   If  the  Company   identifies   a  significant  increase   in  credit  risk  ("SICR")   since   initial
recognition, the asset is transfened to Stage 2 and its ECL is measured based on ECL on a lifetime basis, that
is, up until contractual maturity but considering expected prepayments, if any ("Lifetime ECL"). Refer to Note
18 for a description of how the Company determines when a SICR has occurred. If the Company determines
that a financial asset is credit-impaired, the asset is transferred to Stage 3 and its ECL is measured as a Lifetime
ECL. The Company's definition of credit impaired assets and definition of default is explained in Note 7.

The Note provides information about inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used in measuring ECL,
including an explanation of how the Company incorporates forward-looking information in the ECL models.

Financial assets -derecognition

The Company derecognises financial assets when (a) the assets are redeemed or the rights to cash flows from
the assets otherwise expired or (b) the Company has transferred the rights to the cash flows from the financial
assets  or entered  into  a qualifying pass-through arrangement while (i)  also transferring  substantially  all  the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets or (ii) neither transferring nor retaining substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership but not retaining control.

Control  is retained if the counterparty does not have the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an
unrelated third party without needing to impose restrictions on the sale.

Financial Liabilities -measurement categories

Financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at AC.

Financial  liabilities  are  derecognised  when they  are  extinguished  (i.e.  when  the  obligation  specified  in  the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires).

Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers were carried at AC and impairment losses were recognised in profit or loss
for the  year  when  incurred  as  a  result  of one  or more  events  ("loss  events")  that  occurred  after the  initial
recognition  of the  financial  asset and which  had an  impact on the amount or timing of the  estimated  future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that could be reliably estimated.  If the Company
determined  that  no  objective  evidence  exists  that  impairment  was  incurred  for  an  individually  assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it included the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics, and collectively assessed them for impairment.



"CITY FINANCE NBCO" LLC
NOTES T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024
(Amounts presented are  in A=er l)aijani manals , unless otherwise slated)

3.         Material accounting policies (continued)

Loans and advances to customers (continued)

The primary factors that the Company considered in determining whether a financial asset was impaired were
its overdue status and realisability of related collateral, if any. The following other principal criteria were also
used to determine whether there was objective evidence that a credit loss has occurred:

-any instalment was overdue and the late payment could not be attributed to a delay caused by the settlement

systems;
-the   borrower  experienced  a  significant  financial   difficulty   as   evidenced   by  the  borrower's   financial

information that the Company obtained;
-the borrower considered bankruptcy or a financial reorganisation;

-there was an adverse change in the payment status of the borrower as a result of changes in the national or

local economic conditions that impacted the borrower; or
-the value of collateral significantly decreased as a result of deteriorating market conditions.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of credit loss, financial assets were grouped on the basis of similar
creditriskcharacteristics.Thosecharacteristicswererelevanttotheestimationoffuturecashflowsforgroups
of such assets dy being indicative of the debtors'  ability to pay all  amounts due according to the contractual
terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that were collectively evaluated for credit loss, were estimated
on the basis of the  contractual  cash  flows  of the assets  and the experience  of management  in respect of the
extent to which amounts would become overdue as a result of past loss events and the success of recovery of
overdue amounts. Past experience was adjusted on the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of
currentconditionsthatdidnotaffectpastperiods,andtoremovetheeffectsofpastconditionsthatdonotexist
currently.

If the terms of an impaired  financial asset held at AC were renegotiated or otherwise modified  because of
financialdifficultiesoftheborrowerorissuer,impairmentweremeasuredusingtheoriginaleffectiveinterest
rate before the modification of terms.  The renegotiated asset were then derecognised and a new asset were
recognisedatitsfairvalueonlyiftherisksandrewardsoftheassetsutistantiallychanged.Thiswerenormally
evidenced  by  a  substantial  difference  between  the  present  values  of the  original  cash  flows  and  the  new
expected cash flows.

Impairment  losses  are  always  recognised  through  an  allowance  account to  write  down  the  asset's  canying
amount to  tlie  present  value  of expected cash  flows  (which  exclude  future credit  losses that  have  not  been
incurred) discounted at the original  effective interest rate of the asset. The calculation of the present value of
the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from
foreclosurelesscostsforobtainingandsellingthecollateral,whetherornotforeclosui.eisprobable.

If,inasubsequentperiod,theamountofthecreditlossdecreasesandthedecreasecouldberelatedobjectively
to  an  event  occuning  after the  impairment  was  recognised (such  as  an  improvement  in  the  debtor's  credit
rating), the previously recognised impairment loss was reversed by adjusting the allowance account through
profit or loss for the year.

Uncollectibleassetswerewrittenoffagainsttherelatedcreditlossallowanceafterallthenecessaryprocedures
torecovertheassethadbeencompletedandtheamountofthelosshadbeendetermined.Subsequentrecoveries
ofamountspreviouslywrittenoffwerecreditedtocreditlossaccountinprofitorlossfortheyear.
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"CITY FINANCE NBCO" LLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR BNDED DECEMBER 31, 2024
(Amounts presented are in A=erbaijani manals, unless o(herwise stated)

3.         Material accounting policies (continued)

Casli and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are items which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an  insignificant risk of changes  in value. Cash and cash equivalents  include cash  on  hand and all
interbank placements with original maturities of less than three months. Funds restricted for a period of more
than  three  months  on  origination  are  excluded  from  cash  and  cash  equivalents,  both  in  the  statement  of
financial  position and for the purposes of the statement of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents are carl.ied
at AC because: (i) they are held for collection of contractual cash flows and those cash flows represent SPPI,
and (ii) they are not designated at FVTPL.

Repossessed collateral

Repossessed collateral represents financial and non-financial assets acquired by the Company in settlement of
overdue  loans.  The assets are initially  recognised at fair value when  acquired and  included  in  premises  and
equipment, other financial assets, investment properties or inventories within other assets depending on their
nature and the Company's intention in respect of recovery of these assets, and are subsequently remeasured
and accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies for these categories of assets.

Property and equipments

Properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment, where required.

Costsofminorrepairsandday-todaymaintenanceareexpensedwhenincurred.Thecostofreplacingmajor
parts or components of properties and equipment items are capitalised and the replaced part is retired.

Minorrepairsandroutinemaintenancecostsareexpensedintheperiodincurred.Thecostofreplacingmajor
parts of property and equipment is capitalized and the replaced parts are written off.

At the end of each reporting period management assesses whether there is any indication of impairment of
propertiesandequipment.Ifanysuchindicationexists,managementestimatestherecoverableanount.which
is determined as the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The carrying amount
is reduced to the recoverable amount and the impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss for the year. An
impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior years is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the asset's value in use or fair value less costs to sell.

Gainsandlossesondisposalsdeterminedbycomparingproceedswithcanyingamountarerecognisedinprofit
or loss for the year (within other operating income or expenses).

Depreciation

Property. plant and equipment are depreciated using reducing balance method. The reducing balance method
of depreciation is calculated by applyiiig a fixed percentage on the book value of the asset each year.

Depreciation rates for property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Furniture and fixtures
Computers and communication equipments
Other tan ible assets

TheresidualvalueofanassetistheestimatedamountthattheCompanywouldcurrentlyobtainfromdisposal
of the  asset  less  the  estimated  costs  of disposal,  if the  asset  were  already  of the  age  and  in  the  condition
expected at the end of its useful  life. The residual  value of an  asset is nil  if the Company expects to use the
asset until the end of its physical life. The assets' residual  values and useful  lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each period end date.
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"CITY FINANCE NBCO" LLC

NOTES TO TI]E FINANCIAL STATHMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024
(Amounts presented are in A-.erbaijani manats, unless olherwises'a'ed)

3.         Material accounting policies (continued)

Intangi ble assets

All of the Company's intangible assets have definite useful lives and primarily  include capitalised computer
software.Acquiredcomputersoftwarelicencesarecapitalisedbasedonthecostsincurredtoacquireandbring
to  use  the  specific  software.  All  other  costs  associated  with  computer  software,  e.g.  its  maintenance,  are
expensed when incurred.

Capitalisedcomputersoftwareisanortisedonthereducingbalancemethodbyapplyingafixedpercentageof
the  10%.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The  Company  applies  a  single  recognition  and measurement  approach  for all  leases,  except  for  short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make  lease payments and

right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i)       RIght-Of -use assets

The  Company  recognises  right-of-use  assets  at  the  commencement  date  of  the   lease  (i.e.,the  date  the
underlying  asset  is  available  for  use).   Right-of-use  assets  are  measured  at  cost,   less  any  accumulated
depreeiationandimpairmentlosses,andadjustedforanyremeasurementofleaseliabilities.Thecostofright-
of-useassetsincludestheaniountofleaseliabilitiesrecognised,initialdirectcostsincurredandleasepayments
made  at  or  before  the  commencement  date  less  any   lease  incentives  received.   Right-of-use  assets  are
depreciated  on  a straight-line  basis  over the  shorter of the  lease temi  and  the  estimated  useful  lives  of the
assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

ii)      Lease liabilities

Atthecommencementdateofthelease,theCompanyrecognisesleaseliabilitiesmeasuredatthepresentvalue
of lease  payments  to  be  made  over the  lease term.  The  lease  payments  include  fixed  payments  (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivchle, variable lease payments that depend on an
index  or a rate  and amounts  expected to  be paid  under residual  value guarantees.  The  lease  payments  also
include  the  exercise  price  of a  purchase  option  reasonat)ly  certain  to  be  exercised  by  the  Company  and
payments of penalties  for terminating the lease,  if the lease temi reflects the Company exercising the option
to  terminate.  Variable  lease  payments that do  iiot  depend on  an  index  or a rate  are  recognised  as  expenses
(unlesstheyareincunedtoproduceinventories)intheperiodinwhichtheeventorconditionthattriggersthe
payment  occurs.   In  calculating  the  present  value  of  lease  payments,  the  Company  uses  its  incremental
borrowing rate at the  lease commencement date because the interest rate  implicit in the  lease  is  not readily
determinable.Afterthecommencementdate,theamountofleaseliabilitiesisincreasedtoreflecttlleaccretion
of interest and reduced for the  lease payments  made.  In  addition, the canying amount  of lease  liaoilities  is
remeasurediftliereisamodification,achangeintheleaseterm,achangeintheleasepayments(e.g.,changes
to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a
change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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``CITY FINANCE NBCO" LLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

(Amounts presented are  in A=erbaiif ani  manals, unless otherwise stated)

3.    Material accounting polities (continued)

iii)    Short-term leases and leases Of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-tern  lease recognition  exemption to its  short-term  leases  of machinery  and
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of
office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-teim leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The Company applies the
short-ten lease recognition exemptions to all lease agreements of the Company.

Term I)oi.rowings

Borl.owed funds include loans from resident and non-resident banks and other financial institutions with fixed
maturities and fixed interest rates. Borrowed funds are subsequently carried at amortised cost.

Income taxes

Income taxes  have  been  provided  for  in  the  financial  statements  in  accordance with Azerbajjani  legislation
enacted  or  substantively  enacted  by the  period end date.  The  income tax  charge comprises  current tax  and
defeiTed tax and is recognised in the income statement, except if it is recognised directly in equity because it
relates to transactions that are also recognised, in the same or a different period, directly in equity.

Currenttaxistheamountexpectedtobepaidtoorrecoveredfromthetaxationauthoritiesinrespectoftaxable
profits for the current and prior periods. Taxable profits are based on estimates if financial statements are
authorised prior to filing relevant tax returns. Taxes, other than on income, are recorded within administrative
and operating expenses.

Deferred  income  tax  is  provided  using  the  balance  sheet  liability  method  for  tax  loss  cany  forwards  and
temporary differences  arising  between the tax  bases  of assets and  liabilities  and their canying  amounts  for
financ ial reporting purposes.

Inaccordancewiththeinitialrecognitionexemption,deferredtaxesarenctrecordedfortemporarydifferences
on  initial  recognition  of an  asset  or  a  liability  in  a  transaction  other  than  a  business  combination  if the
transaction, when  initially recorded, affects neither accounting nor taxable profit.  Deferred tax  balances are
measured at tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the date which are expected to apply to the period
when the temporary differences will reverse or the tax loss cany forwards will be utilised.

Deferred tax assets for deductible temporary differences and tax loss carry forwards are recorded only to the
extentthatitisprobablethatfuturetaxableprofitwillbeavailableagainstwhichthedeductionscanbeutilised.

Uncertain tax positions

The Company's uncertain tax positions are reassessed by management at the end of each  reporting period.
Liabilities are recorded for income tax positions that are determined I)y management as more likely than not
to result in additional taxes being levied if the positions were to be challenged by the ten authorities.

The assessment is based on the intelpretation of tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted dy
the end of the reporting period, and any known court or other rulings on such issues. Liabilities for penalties,
interestandtaxesotherthanonincomearerecognisedbasedonmanagement'sbestestimateoftheexpenditure
required to settle the obligations at the end of the reporting period.

Income and expense recognition

Interest income and expense are recorded in profit or loss  for all  debt instruments on an accrual  basis  using
the  effective  interest  method.  This  method  defers.  as  part  of interest  income  or  expense,  all  fees  paid  or
I.eceived between the parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective  interest rate, transaction
costs and all other premiums or discounts.
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"CITY FINANCE NBCO" LLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDEI) DECEMBER 31, 2024
(Amounts presented are in A=erbaijani mariats. uylless otherwise slated)

3.  Material accounting policies (continued)

Income and expense recognition (continued)

Fees integral to the effective interest rate include origination fees received or paid by the Company relating to
the creation or acquisition of a financial asset or issuance of a financial liability, for example fees for evaluating
creditworthi ness, evaluating and recording guarantees or collateral, negotiating the terms of the instrument and
for processi ng transaction documents.

Commitment  fees  received  by  the  Company  to  originate  loans  at  market  interest  rates  are  integral  to  the
effective interest rate if it is probable that the Company will enter into a specific lending arrangement and does
not expect to sell the resulting loan shortly after origination.

The Company does not designate loan commitments as financial  liabilities at FVTPL.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of financial
assets, except for (i) financial assets that have become credit impaired (Stage 3), for which interest revenue is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to their AC, net of the ECL provision, and (ii) financial assets
that are purchased or originated credit impaired, for which the original credit-adjusted effective interest rate is

applied to the AC.

When  loans and other debt instruments become doubtful of collection, they are written down to the present
value  of expected  cash  inflows  and  interest  income  is  thereafter recorded  for the  unwinding  of the  present
value discount based on the asset's effective interest rate which was used to measure the impaiment loss.

All other fees, commissions and other income and expense items are generally recorded on an accrual basis by
reference to completion of the  specific transaction assessed on the  basis  of the actual  service  provided as  a
proportion of the total services to be provided.

Foreign currency translation

The functional currency of the Company is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity  operates.  The  functional  currency  of the  Company  and  the  Company's  presentation  currency  is  the
national currency of the Republic of Azerbaijan, Azerbaij ani Manats ("AZN").

Monetary assets and liabilities are translated into Company's functional currency at the official exchange rate
of the CBAR at the end of the respective reporting period.  Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the  settlement  of transactions  and  from  the  translation  of monetary  assets  and  liabilities  into  Company's
functional currency at year-end official exchange rates of the CBAR are recognised in profit or loss for the
year (as foreign exchange translation gains less losses).

Translation at year-end rates does not apply to non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency, including equity investments, are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Effects of exchange rate changes on the fair
value of equity securities are recorded as part of the fair value gain or loss.

At December 31, 2024, the rate of exchange used for translating foreign currency balances denominated in
United States dollars ("USD") was USD  I  = AZN  I.7000 (2023:  USD  I  = AZN  I.7000).

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position only
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an  intention to either
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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``CITY FINANCE NBCO" LLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024
(Amounts presented are in A=erbaiifani n.anats, unless  otherwise  slaled)

3.    Material accounting polities (continued)

Offsetting (contin ued)

Such a right of set off (a) must not be contingent on a future event and (b) must be legally enforceable in all
of the following cireumstances: (i) in the normal course of business, (ii) in the event of default and (iii) in the
event of insolvency or bankruptcy.

Staff costs and related contributions

Wages,  salaries,  contributions  to the  Republic  of Azerbaijan  state pension  and  social  insurance  funds,  paid
annual leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by the employees of the Company. The Company has no legal or constructive obligation
to  make  pension  or  similar  benefit  payments  beyond  the  payments  to  the  statutory  defined  contribution
scheme.

Financial instruments -key measurement terms

Depending on their classification financial instruments al.e carried at fair value or AC.

4.         Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies

The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.  Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on management's
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstanees. Management also makes certain judgements, apart from those involving estimations, in the
process of applying the accounting policies.

Judgements that  have  the most significant effect on the amoimts  recognised  in the  financial  statements  and
estimates that can cause a significant adjustment to the canying amount of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year include:

ECL measurement

Measurement of ECLs is a significant estimate that involves detemination of methodology, models and data
inputs. Details of ECL measurement methodology are disclosed in Note 07.

The  following  components  have  a  major  impact  on  credit  loss  allowance:  definition  of default,  SICR,
probability of default ("PD"), exposure at default ("EAD"), and loss given default ("LGD"), as well as models
of macro-economic scenarios.

The Company regularly reviews and validates the models and inputs to the models to reduce any differences
between expected credit loss estimates and actual credit loss experience.

Significant increase in credit risk ("SICR")

In order to determine whether there has been a significant increase jn credit risk, the Company compares the
risk of a default occurring over the life ofa fmancia]  instrument at the end of the reporting date with the risk
of default at the date of initial recognition. The assessment considers relative increase in credit risk rather than
achieving a specific level of credit risk at the end of the reporting period.

The Company considers all reasonable and supportable forward looking information available without undue
cost  and  effort,  which  includes  a  range  of factors,  including  behavioural  aspects  of particular  customer
portfolios. The Company identifies behavioural  indicators of increases in credit risk prior to delinquency and
incorporated appropriate  forward looking information into the credit risk assessment, either at an individual
instrument, or on a portfolio level.
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NOTES T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THB YEAR ENI)ED DECEMBER 31, 2024
(Amounts presented are in A=erbaijani rrranats, unless otherwise slaled)

4.         Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies (continued)

Business model assessment

The business model drives classification of financial assets. Management applied judgement in determining
the  level  of aggregation  and  portfolios  of  financial  instruments  when  performing  the  business  model
assessment. When assessing sales transactions, the Company considers their historical frequency. timing and
value, reasons for the sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Sales transactions aimed at minimising potential losses due to credit deterioration are considered consistent
with the "hold to collect" business model. Other sales before maturity, not related to credit risk management
activities, are also consistent with the "hold to collect" business model, provided that they are infrequent or
insignificant in value, both individually and in aggregate.

The Company assesses significance of sales transactions by comparing the value of the sales to the value of
the portfolio subject to the business model assessment over the average life of the portfolio. In addition, sales
of financial asset expected only in stress case scenario, or in response to an isolated event that is beyond the
Company's control, is not recurring and could not have been anticipated by the Company, are regarded as
incidental  to the business  model  objective  and  do  not  impact the classification  of the  respective  financial
assets.

The .`hold to collect and sell" business model means that assets are held to collect the cash flows, but selling
is also integral to achieving the business model's objective, such as,  managing liquidity needs, achieving a
particular yield,  oT matching the  duration  of the  financial  assets to the duration  of the  liabilities that  fund
those assets.

The residual category includes those poilfolios of financial assets, which are managed with the objective of
realising cash flows primarily through sale, such as where a pattern of trading exists. Collecting contractual
cash flow is often incidental for this business model.

Assessment whetl]er cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest ("SPP[")

Determining whether a  financial  asset's  cash  flows  are  solely  payments  of principal  and  interest required
judgement,

The Company identified and considered contractual terms that change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows.

The SPPI criterion is met if a loan allows early settlement and the prepayment amount substantially represents

principal  and accrued interest, plus a reasonable additional  compensation  for the early temination of the
contract.

The  asset's   principal   is  the   fair  value  at  initial   recognition  less   subsequent  principal   repayments,   ie
instalments net of interest detemined using the effective interest method. As an exception to this principle,
the  standard  also  allows  instruments  with  prepayment  features  that  meet  the  following  condition  to  meet
SPPI:

(i) the asset is  originated  at a premium or discount, (ii) the  prepayment amount represents  contractual  par
amount  and  accrued  interest  and  a  reasonable  additional  compensation  for  the  early  termination  of the
contract, and (ii) the fair value of the prepayment feature is immaterial at initial recognition.

The  Company's  loan  agreements  allow  adjusting  interest  rates  in  response  to  certain  macro-economic  or
regulatory changes. Management appliedjudgement and assessed that competition in the banking sector and
the practical ability of the borrowers to refinance the loans would prevent it from resetting the interest rates
at an above-market level and hence cash flows were assessed as being SPPI.
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4.            Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies (continued)

Useful lives of property and equipment

Management  determines  the  estimated  useful  lives  of property  and  equipment  and  related  depreciation
expense. This probability is based on the projected duration of economic benefits estimated by the Company
on the  assets.  Management accrues depreciation expense  when the useful  life  is  less than the previously
estimated  life,  or when obsolete  assets  are  abandoned or sold,  those  assets are technically  written  off in
whole or in part. The useful life is reviewed at least at each reporting date.

Initial recognition of related party transactions

ln the  normal  course  of business, the  Company  enters  into transactions  with  its  related  parties.    IFRS  9
requires  initial  recognition  of financial  instruments  based  on  their  fair  values.  Judgment  is  applied  in
determining if transactions are priced at market or non-market interest rates, where there is no active market
for such  transactions.  The  basis  for judgment  is  pricing  for similar types  of transactions  with  unrelated

parties and effective interest rate analyses.

Deferred income tax asset recognition

The  recognised  deferred  tax  asset  represents  income  taxes  recoverable  through  future  deductions  from
taxable proflts and is recorded in the statement of financial position. Deferred income tax assets are recorded
to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit is probable. The future taxable profits and the amount
of tax  benefits  that  are  probable  in  the  future  are  based  on  a  medium  term  business  plan  prepared  by
management and extrapolated results thereafter.  The business plan  is based on management expectations
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Going concern

Management  prepared  these  financial  statements  on  a  going  concern  basis.  In  making  this judgement
management considered the  Company's  financial  position,  current  intentions,  profitability  of operations
and access to financial resources, and analysed the impact of the recent financial crisis on future operations
of the Company.

5.        Adoption of new or revised standards and interpretations

ln the  current year, the Company  has  adopted  all  new and revised  standards  issued  by  the  lnternational
Accounting  Standards  Board  (IASB)  and  the  IFRS  Interpretations  Committee  that  are  applicable  to  its
activities and the reporting period ending on December 31, 2024.

The fo]]owing amendments became effective from January 1, 2024.

Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases:  Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (issued on September 22,
2022 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after January I, 2024)

The amendments relate to the sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy the requirements in IFRS  15 to be
accounted for as a sale. The amendments require the seller-lessee to subsequently measure liabilities arising
from the transaction and in a way that it does not recognise any gain or loss related to the right of use that
it retained. This means that any gain related to the right-of-use asset retained by the seller-lessee should be
deferred, even when lease payments are variable and do not depend on an index or a rate.
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5.        Adoption of new or revised standards and interpretations (continued)

Classirication  of liabilities  as  current  or  non-current  -  Amendments  to  lAS  I  (originally  issued  on
January 23, 2020 and subsequently amended on July 15, 2020 and October 31, 2022, ultimately effective
for annual periods beginning on or after January I, 2024)

These amendments clarify that liabilities are classified as either current or non-current, depending on the rights
that exist at the end of the reporting period.  Liabilities are non-current if the entity  has a substantive right,  at
the end of the reporting period, to defer settlement for at least twelve months. The guidance no longer requires
such a right to be unconditional. The October 2022 amendment established that loan covenants to be complied
with after the reporting date do not affect the classification of debt as  current or non-current at the  reporting
date. Management's expectations whether they will subsequently exercise the right to defer settlement do not
affect classification of liabilities. A  liability is classified as curl.ent if a condition is breached at or before the
reporting date even if a waiver of that condition is obtained from the lender after the end of the reporting period.
Conversely, a loan  is classified as non-current  if a loan covenant  is breached only after the reporting date.  In
addition, the amendments include clarifying the classification requirements for debt a company might settle by
converting it into equity.  `Settlement'  is defined as the extinguishment of a liability with cash, other resources
embodying  economic  benefits  or  an  entity's  own  equity  instruments.  There  is  an  exception  for  convertible
instruments that might be converted into equity, but only for those instruments where the conversion option is
classified as an equity instrument as a separate component of a compound financial instrument.

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of cash Flows and ]FRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: Supplier
Finance Arrangements (Issued on May 25, 2023 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January I, 2024)

In  response  to  concerns  of the  users  of financial  statements  about  inadequate  or  misleading  disclosure  of
financing arrangements, in May 2023, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 to require disclosure
about entity's supplier finance arrangements (SFAs). These amendments require the disclosures of the entity's
supplier finance arrangements that would enable the users of financial statements to assess the effects of those
arrangements on the entity's liabilities and cash flows and on the entity's exposure to liquidity risk. The purpose
of the additional disclosure requirements  is to enhance the transparency of the supplier finance arrangements.
The amendments do not affect recognition or measurement principles but only disclosure requirements.

Unless stated otherwise, the application of the above amendments had no significant impact on the Company's
financi al statements.

6.      New accounting pronouncements

As  of the  date  of  approval  of these  financial  statements,  in  addition  to  the  standards  and  interpretations

previously adopted by the Company before their respective effective dates, the IASB has issued new standards
and interpretations that will become mandatory for annual periods beginning on or after January  I. 2025.  The
Company has not early adopted these standards and interpretations.

Amendments  to  [AS 21  Lack of Exchangeability (Issued  on  August  15, 2023  and  effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January I. 2025)

In August 2023, the IASB  issued amendments to  IAS 21  to help entities assess exchangeability between two
currencies and determine the spot exchange rate, when exchangeability is lacking. An entity is impacted by the
amendments when it has a transaction or an operation in a foreign currency that is not exchangeable into another
currency at a measurement date for a specified purpose.

The amendments to  lAS  21  do not provide detailed requirements on  how to estimate the spot exchange rate.
Instead,  they   set  out  a  framework  under  which  an  entity  can  determine  the  spot  exchange  rate  at  the
measurement date. When applying the new requirements, it is not permitted to restate comparative information.
It is required to translate the affected amounts at estimated spot exchange rates at the date of initial application,
with an adjustment to retained earnings or to the reserve for cumulative translation differences.
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6.      New accounting pronouncements (continued)

Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments - Amendments to IFRS 9
and IFRS 7 (issued on May 30, 2024 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after January  I,
2026)

On May 30, 2024, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 9 and lFRS 7 to:

•      (a) clarify the date of recognition and derecognition of some financial assets and liabilities, with a new
exception for some financial liabilities settled through an electronic cash transfer system;
(b) clarify and add further guidance for assessing whether a financial asset meets the solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) criterion;

(c) add new disclosures for certain instruments with contractual terms that can change cash flows (such
as some instruments with features linked to the achievement of environment, social and governance
(ESG) targets); and
(d) update the disclosures for equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVocl).

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements (Issued on April 9, 2024 and effective for
annual periods beginning on or aftet. January I, 2027)

In  April  2024,  the  IASB  has  issued  IFRS  18,  the  new  standard  on  presentation  and  disclosure  in  financial
statements, with a focus on updates to the statement of profit or loss. The key new concepts introduced in IFRS
18 relate to:

•      the structure of the statement of profit or loss;
•      required disclosures in the financial statements for certain profit or loss performance measures that are

reported outside an entity's financial statements (that is, management-defined performance measures);
and

•      enhanced principles on aggregation and disaggregation which apply to the primary financial statements
and notes in general.

IFRS  18 will replace IAS  I  while retaining most of its principles with limited modifications.

IFRS 18 will not impact the recognition or measurement of items in the financial statements, but it might change
what an entity reports as its `operating profit or loss' . IFRS  18 will apply for reporting periods beginning on or
after January  I, 2027 and also applies to comparative information.

IFRS  19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability:  Disclosures (]s§ued on  May 9, 2024 and  effective
for annual periods b€giDDing on or after January I, 2027)

The  lnternational  Accounting  Standard  Board  (IASB)  has  issued  a  new  IFRS  Accounting  Standard  for
subsidiaries. IFRS  19 permits eligible subsidiaries to use IFRS Accounting Standards with reduced disclosures.
Applying IFRS  19 will reduce the costs of preparing subsidiaries'  financial  statements while maintaining the
usefulness of the information for users of their financial statements.

Subsidiaries  using  IFRS  Accounting  Standards  for  their  own  financial  statements  provide  disclosures  that
maybe disproportionate to the information needs of their users. IFRS  19 will resolve these challenges by:

•    enabling subsidiaries to keep only one set of accounting records -to meet the needs of both their parent
company and the users of their financial statements;

•    reducing disclosure requirements -IFRS  19 permits reduced disclosure better suited to the needs of the

users of their financial statements.

Unless otherwise described above, the new standards and interpretations are considered by  Management and
concluded that they are not expected to significantly affect the Company's financial statements.

The requirements of these new standards and interpretations have not been applied in the preparation of these
financial   statements.   The  Management   has   assessed  the  potential   impact   of  these   new   standards  and
interpretations  and does  not expect them to have a material  effect on  its  financial  statements  upon  adoption.
These standards will be applied as required from their respective effective dates.

19



"CITY FINANCE NBCO" LLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED I)ECEMBER 31, 2024
(Amounts presented are in A=erbaijani manats, unless otherwise s!aled)

7.         Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following:

December 3l,                December 3l,
2024                                    2023

Cash  in transit                                                                                                                                                                   143,779                                   101,585

Bank balances able on demand                                                                                                                      183,615                                   172,783

Total casl] and cash equivalents                                                                                                       327,394                              274

For the purpose of ECL measurement cash and cash equivalents balances are included in Stage  I.

8.    Loans and leasings to customers

Loans and leasings to customers consisted of the following:

December 31.
2024      2023

Decem I)er 31,
reclassiried*

Corporate loans
Loans to individuals -consumer loans
Leasing loans
Less: ex ected credit loss allowance

3,154,887                                2,212,614

14,920,354                           14,479,502
12,909,013                             8,849,940
I,856,582 339,600

Total car amount of loans and [easin to customers at AC                                   29 127,672                        24202,456

*Certain amounts shown here ai.e not consistent with Note 8  in the 2023  financial  statements and reflect reclassification

adjustments.

The  gross  carrying  amount  of loans  and  leasings  to  customers  at  amortized  cost  and  the  analysis  of the
allowance for credit losses by category as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 are shown in the table
below:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 (r€c]assified *)
Expected                                                                        Expected

G Toss          credit loss                     Net                         G ross          credit loss                      Net
amount          allowance                value                     am ount          allowance                  value

Loans to I)ussinesses -
orate loans

Corporate  loans                               3,154,887             (564,542)        2,590,345                   2,212,614            (207,320)           2,005,294

Loans to individuals -
consumer loans

Consumer loans                            14,920,354             (990,080)      13,930,274                 14,479,502            (934,940)         13,544,562

Loans to leasim

Leasing loans                                   12,909,013             (301,960)      12,607,053                   8,849,940            ( 197,340)           8,652,600

Loans and lcasings to
Customers at total
amortized cost                          30,984,254 I,8S6,582 29,127,672               25,542,056 I,339'600 24,202,456

*  Certain amounts shown here are not consistent with Note 8 in the 2023  financial  statements and reflect reclassification

adjustments.
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8.      Loans and Leasings to customers (continued)

Movements in the loan expected credit loss by classes of  loans and leasings for the year ended December 31,
2024 are as follows:

Consumer            Corporate           Leasing
loans                        loans                 loans               Total

Balance at tlle be 934,940 207J20 197£40 1£39,600

ected credit loss allowance durin 357,222 104,620 5 16,982

Balance at the end of the 990'080 S64542 Sol,960

Movements in the loan expected credit loss by classes of  loans and leasings for the year ended December 31,
2023  are as follows:

I.ecLassifi€d*
Consu in €r             Co rporate            Leasing

loans                        loans                  loans               Total

Balance at the I]e 179,920

ected credit loss allowance durin 557,390 197,340 782,130
Balance at the end of the 934,940 207£20 197j40 lJ39,600

*  Certain amounts shown here are not consistent with Note 8 in the 2023  financial  statements and reflect reclassification

adjustments.

The following table presents the ECL reserves stages based on IFRS 9 as at December 31, 2024.

December 31, 2024

e  I                         Sta e 2                        Sta e 3                      Total

Not overdue nor impaired
Overdue, but not impaired
Individuall

28,482,371                                17,709

457,595                                19,013
2,007,566

28,500,080

476,608
2,007,566

Less: ex ected credit loss allowance I ,358,920 I,856,582

28,059,455 400'558 667,659            29,127,672

The following table presents the ECL reserves stages based on IFRS 9 as at December 31, 2023.

December 31, 2023

Stage  I                         Stage 2                         Stage 3                       Total

Not overdue nor impaired

Overdue, but not impaired

Individuall

23,250,762

866,006

-              23,250,762

866,006

I,425,288                  I,425,288

Less: ex ected credit loss allowance 305,431 122,449 91 I,720 I,339,600

22,945,331                       743557 513,568             24,202,456
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8.      Loans and [easings to customers (continued)

The table below summarizes the quality assurance of loan portfolio at December 31, 2024:

Expected credit
G Toss loans                     Loss allowance Net loans

Consumer loal)s
Loans without individual signs of impairment
Impaired  loans:
-overdue 30-90 days

overdue than 90 da

13,394,720                                  ( 139,816)                                 13,254,904

375,682                                   (46.595)                                     329,087
I,149,952 803,669 346,283

Total im aired loans                                                                       I,525,634 850'264 675J70
Total consumer Loatls 14,920J54 990,080 13,930,274

Corporate loans
Loans without individual signs of impairment
[mpalred  loans:
- overdue 30-90 days

overdue than 90 da

2,397.265

7 S7 ,I;22

(58,821 )

505,721

2,338,444

25 I,901
Total im ailed loans 757,622 S05'721 2Sl,90l
Total cor orate loans                                                                       3,154,887 564,542 2.590J45
Leasing loans
Loans without individual signs of impaiment
Impaired  loans:
- overdue 30-90 days

overdue than 90 da

12,708,094                                   (226,158)                                  12,481,936

loo,926                                 (2 8,902)                                      72,024
99,993 53,093

Total im aired loans 200,919 125'117
Total leasin 12'909.013 301,960 607,053

The table below summarizes the quality assurance of loan portfolio at December 31, 2023:

reclassified*
Expected credit

Gross loans                   loss a]]owance Net loans

Consumer loans
Loans without individual signs of impaiment
Impaired  loans:
- overdue 30-90 days

overdue than 90 da

12,822,374                                     (131,249)                                    12,691,125

542,325
I,114,803

(60,318)
743,373

482,007
371,430

8S3,437Total im aired loans 1'657,128 803,691
Total consumer loans 14,479,502 934,940 13,544,562

orate loans
Loans without individual signs of impalrment
Impaired  loans:
- overdue 30-90 days

overdue than 90 da

10,428,388                                  ( 174,182)                                 10,254,206

323,680
3 10,486

(62.130)
168,348

261,550
142,138

Total im aired loans 634'166 230,478 403,688
Total co ot.ate loans 11,062'554 404'660 10,657,894

Leasin
Loans without individual signs of impajrment
Impaired loans:
- overdue 30-90 days

overdue than 90 da

8,509,927                                ( 127,566)

323,680                                  (62,130)
16,333

8,382,361

261,550

Total im aired loans 69'774 270239
To.al leasin 8,849,940 197,340
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8.      Loans and leasings to customers (continued)

The  Company's  policy  regarding  obtaining  collateral  for  loans  has  not  changed  significantly  during  the
reporting period,  and there has been  no  significant change in the overall  quality of the collateral  held  by the
Company since the previous period.

Description of collateral held for loans to corporate customers and individuals carried at amortised cost is as
follows at December 31, 2024:

rate loans               Consumer loans                        Leasin
Loans collateralised by :
-gold and jewelry
-vehicles
-movable properties
-residential real estate
-other real estate

13,203,735

9,192

304,891
47,848
10,309

51.128

5,805
50,879

522,006

I 2,607,053

Total                                                                                                                   13.S75,975                                 629,818

Unsecured ex sures                                                                                             3 54 2991

Total gross value loans and leasings to
customers at AC (amount represei)ting
exposi]re to credit risk Tor each class of loans at

13,930,274                              2,590 45                     12.607.OS3

Description of collateral held for loans to corporate customers and individuals carried at amortised cost is as
follows at December 3 I, 2023 :

reclassified* rate loans               Consumer loans              I.easin
Loans collateralised by :
•vehicles
-movable properties
-gold and jewelry
-residential real estate
-other real estate

I,006,966
248,007
194,254

11,112,458

59,424
824,858
143,725

19.367

8,652,600

I,449227                          12 I s9,832                      8,652,600

Unsecured ex 556,067                                I,384

Total gross value loans and leasings to customers
at AC (amount representing exposLLre to credit
risk for each class Of loans at AC 2,005294                         13544562                    8.652,600

'  Certain amounts shown here are not consistent with Note 8  in the 2023  financial statements and reflect reclassification

adjustments.
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"CITY FINANCE NBCO" LLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMRER 31, 2024
(Amounts presented are in A=erbaiifani manals, unless otherwise stated)

10.       Rightrof-use assets and ]case liabilities

The Company leases ofis areas. Rental contracts are typically made for forced periods of 5 years but may have
extension options.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company elected not to separate lease and non-
lease components and  instead accounts for these as a single lease component. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions, Lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not
be used as security for bonowing purposes. Extension and termination options are included in a number of leases
across the Company. These are used to maximize operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in
the Company's  operations.  The majority of extension and termination  options  held are exercisable  by  both the
Company and the respective lessors.

From January 01, 2022, leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability from the date
when the leased asset becomes available for use by the Company.

The movement in the balance sheet value of right of use assets is as follows:

Ofr[ce areas                                 Total

amount at December 31, 2022 348,348                             348
Additions

reciation char e for the

amount at December 31, 2023 261,321                               26lJ2 I
reciation char e for the

amount at December 31, 2024                                                                                           174,055 174,OS5

The  reconciliation  of the  opening  and  closing  amounts  of lease  liabilities  with  relevant  cash  and  non-cash
changes from financing activities is stated below:

2024                                     2023

Total discounted lease liabilities at Janua 331,610                                 406,479

Finance cost
Finance cost paid

27,979

(2J .919)
(98,328)

37,278

(37,278)

Total discounted Lease ]iabi]ities at December 31 233282                               331,610

Current portion                                                                                                                                                         108,738                                    98,328
Non-current portion                                                                                                                                             124,544                                2 3 3

Total discounted lease liabilities at December 31 233,282                                  331,610

Current portion                                                                                                                                                                      126,307                                    112,147
Non-current portion 256,957                                 383,264

Total undiscounted lease liabilities at December 31 383,264                                495,411

11.    Otherassets

Other assets consisted of the following:

December 31,                  December 31.
2024                                     2023

Prepayments for the services                                                                                                                            709.038                                653,219
ments to SSPF 14,674                                           I,381

Total otller assets 723,712                               654,600

The deferred portion of insurance costs incurred on lease loans for which advance payments for services were
made.
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12.      Term borrowings

Term borrowings consisted of the following:

Decent)er 31,                     December 31,
2024                                       2023

"Ziraat Bank Azerbaijan" OJSC
"Yelo Bank" OJSC

Entrepreneurship Development Fund of the Republic of Azerbaijan
Accrued interest

4,693,346
I,530,000

330,000
14,437

2,880,686
I,020,000

8,70t
Total term borrowin s                                                                                                                          6,567,783                             3,909J87

As  at  December  31,  2024  and  December  31,  2023  term  borrowings  from  banks  of the  Company  were
represented by the following facilities:

Banks                                                      a
Loan         Loan  Annual               Issue         Maturity  December 3l,      Dec€mb€r3l,

reement   amount         rate               Date                  date                    2024                        2023
"Ziraat Bank

Azerbaij an" OJSC
"Ziraat Bank

Azerbaijan" OJSC
"Ziraat Bank

Azerbaijan" OJSC
"Zii.aat Bank

Azerbaij an" OJSC
"Entrepreneurship

Development
Fund of the
Republic of
Azerbaijan"
"Ziraat Bank

Azerbaij an" OJSC
"Yelo Bank"

OJSC
"Ziraat Bank

Azerbaijan" OJSC
"Ziraat Bank

Azerbaijan" OJSC
"Ziraat Bank

Azerbaljan" OJSC
"ZiTaat Bank

Azerbaij an" OJSC
"Ziraat Bank

Azerbaijan" OJSC
"Yelo Bank"

OJSC
"Yelo Bank"

OJSC

500,000
020CRLN2100003 I -15           AZN

500,000
020CRLN2100003 I-17           AZN

500.000
020CRLN2100003 I-I 8          AZN

438,000
020CRLN2100003 I-19          AZN

EDF of   330,000
The Republic of Azerbaijan

020CRLN21000031 -24

6-SME-I-a-23/2

020CRLN24000025-6

020CRLN24000038

020CRLN24000036

020CRLN2100003 I -34

020CRLN2 100003 I -33

6-SME-I -8-23/I I

6-SME-I-8-23/9

AZN
623,500

USD
600,000

USD
600,000

USD
260,550

USD
600,000

USD
605,000

USD
430.295

USD
600,000

USD
300,000

USD

11%     28.10.2022

11%       16.11.2022

11%     02.12.2022

11%      '3.12.2022

1%     24.09.2024

5.5%      15.08.2023

5.5%     23.01.2023

6.5%     02.08.2024

6.5%     16.07.2024

6.5%     10.07.2024

6.5%     05.01.2024

6.5%     30.04.2024

6.5%     15.04.2024

6.5%     31.01.2024

28.10.2024                                                            420,154

17.11.2025                  240,660                      486,288

02.12.2025                  231,373                        481,001

15.12.2025                  233,501                        438,000

24.09.2027                33 0,000

15.02.2025                   180,219                   I,062,541

19.01.2026

03.08.2026

16.07.2025

10.07.2025

05.01.2026

30.04.2026

3 I .0 I .2027

31.01.2027

823,067

448,021

I,020,000

I,035,336

495,606

I,020,000

51 0,000

I,021.403

6,567,783               3,909,387
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12.      Term borrowings (continued)

A  reconciliation  of the  opening  and  closing  amounts  of term  borrowings  with  relevant  cash  and  non-cash
changes from financing activities is stated below:

2024                                            2023

3,909€87                                  I,949,423

Cash flow movemel.ts
Proceeds from term borrowings
Payment of principal amount

ment of interest ex

6,102,937

(3,450,277)
408,748

2,079,950

(117,264)
288,096

Changes in accrued transactions
I nterest ex ense                                                                                                                                                       414 484                                         285,374
December31 6,567,783                                  3,909€87

13.      Amountsdueto related parties

The balances of amounts due to related parties are as follows:

December 3l,                           December 31.
2024                                              2023

Amounts due to related parties:
-"Ferrum capital" CJSC                                                                                                                    5,890,572                                     8,344,402
- Shareholder 500,000
Total amounts due to related 6y390,572                                  8j44.402

Amounts payable to  related parties  include  interest-free  loans granted  for the  purpose ot` financial  assistance
under an agreement signed between the Coinpany and "Ferrum Kapital" CJSC and the shareholder, which are
due for repayment by January  I. 2027 and December  10, 2025, respectively.

14.      Debtsecurities in issue

December 3l                            December 31
2024                                             2023

Bonds issued in domestic market                                                                                                     I,838.000
Accrued interest for bonds 3,223
Total debt securities in issue I,841.223

The  table  below  describes  the  changes   in  cash  flows  and  accrued  transactions  afl`ecting  the  initial   and
outstanding balance of debt securities issiied:

2024

Cash flow
Term borrowings
Princi|)al paid
Interest

2,003,000

( 165,000)
192,84 I

Clianges to non<asli oi)erations
Interest ex I 96,064

I,841223December 31
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15.    Other liabilities

Other liabilities consisted of the following:

December 31, 2024           Decent)er 3l, 2023

Payable to customers
Payable to employees
Accrued expenses
Liabilities to SSPF
Payable for purchase intangible assets
Tax payables other than corporate income tax
Other liabilities

95,533
62,194
15,870

I I,669

I ,651

101 .066

38,338
15,280
34,520
27,180
20,000
17,344

Total other ]iabi]ities                                                                                                                              186,917                                  253,728

16.    Charter capital

The total authorized number of ordinary shares is  I  (one) thousand shares with a par value of AZN 5,000 per
share at December 31, 2024 (2023:  I  (one) thousand shares with a par value of AZN 5,000 per share).

17.      Interest incomeand expense

Interest income and expense consisted of the following:

Year ended                        Year ended
December 31, 2024           December 31, 2023

Interest income calculated using tl]e effective interest method
-Loans and leasin s to customers at AC                                                                                             7,177,717                                 6,249,817
Tcta] interest iticome calculated using tlie effective interest
method 7,177,717                                6,249,817

Interest expense
-Lease liability
-Tern borrowings
-    Debt securities in issue

(2J,979)
(414,484)
196,064

(37,278)
(285,374)

Total interest ex 638,527 322,652
Net interest income 03                                5,927,16S

18.      Administrative and other operating expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses consisted of the following:

Year ended
December 31. 2024

(1277,891)

(935,704)

(95,758)

(68J48)
(75293)
(70£21)

(43,916)

(20j70)
( 1200)

(417)

Year ended
DDecember31.2023

(922,046)
(578,172)

(87,027)

(35,765)

( 1  I,768)

(43,738)

(55,409)

( 11202)

(100)

(275)

Staff related expenses
Insurance expenses
Depreciation of right of use asset
Other expenses
Software expenses
Advertisement expenses
Professi onal serv ice expenses
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Short-ten rent expenses
Tax expenses other than income tax
Sanctions

Total administrative and other operating expenses
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19.      Feeand comission expense

Fee and comission expenses consisted of the following:

Year ended
December 31, 2024

Year ended
December 31, 2023

Fee and commission expense
Fee and commission expense not relating to financial instruments
at fair value through profit or loss
- Paypoint operations

Bank char
( 165,305) (68,873)

Total fee and commission ex

20.      Corporate income tax

(a) Components of income tax expense

Corporate income tax expense comprises the following:

Year ended                        Year ended
Decembei. 3l, 2024           Deceml)er 31

Current income tax expense                                                                                                                      (652,571 )                                 (668,784)

Defemed tax  benefit/ 20,429

orate income tax ex ense for the 619,246

(b)Reconci]jation between the tax expense and profit or loss multiplied by applicable tax rate

The income tax rate applicable to the Company's income in 2024 and 2023 income is 20%. A reconciliation
between the expected and the actual taxation charge is provided below:

Year ended                     Year ended
December31, 2024       December 31, 2023

Prorit before tax                                                                                                                               3,180,952                        3t240.036
Theoretical tax charge at statutory rate of 20%
Tax effect of items which are not deductible or assessable for taxation

purposes:
. Other

(636,190)                             (648,007)

Income tax ex ense for the

(c) Deferred taxes analysed by type of temporary difference

Differences between  IFRS  and Azerbaijani  statutory taxation regulations give rise to temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases, The
tax effect of the movements in these temporap/ differences is detailed below and is recorded at the rate of 20%
(2023:  20%).
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20.      Corporate income taxes (continued)

The tax effect of the movements in the temporary differences for the year ended December 31, 2024 are:

Decent)er3l,        Recognized in         December 31,
2023 rofit or loss                           2024

Tax effect of. deductible temporary differences
I,oars and advances to customers
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Right of use assets
Other liabilities
Lease liabili

54,116                              11,366                            65,482

(99)
(429)

(52,264)
(16,405)

66,322

70                              (29)
2                            (42 7)

17,453                           (34,811)

2,352                       ( 14,053)

2,082                       68,404
Net deferred tax asset                                                                                                    51,241                        33,325                      84,566

The tax effect of the movements in the temporary differences for the year ended December 31, 2023 are:

December31.        Recognized in       December31,
2022 rofit or loss                        2023

Tax effect of deductible temporary differences
Loans and advances to customers
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Right of use assets
Other liabilities
Lease  liabili

5 6,964                         (2 ,848)
(99)

(429)
(69,670)

3,080
81,296

17,406

(19,485)

54,116

(99)
(429)

(52,264)
( 16,405)

66,322
Net deferred tax asset                                                                                                 71,670

21.      Financial risk management

The risk management is carried out in respect of financial risks (credit, market, geographical, currency, liquidity
and interest rate), operational risks and legal risks. The primary objectives of the financial risk management are
to  establish  risk  limits,  and then ensure that exposure to  risks  stays  within  these  limits.  The operational  and
legal risk management are intended to ensure proper functioning of internal policies and procedures, in order
to minimise operational and legal risks.

Credit risk

The Company exposes itself to credit risk which is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a
financial loss for the other party by falling to meet an obligation.
Exposure to credit risk arises as a result of the Company's lending and other transactions with counterparties

giving rise to financial assets.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk is reflected in the carrying amounts of financial assets in the
statement  of financial  position.  For  financial  guarantees  issued,  the  maximum  exposure to  credit  risk  is  the
amount of the commitment.

December 31, 2024                    Decent)er 3l, 2023
Cash and cash equivalents                                                                                                            327,394                                             274,368
Loans and advances to customers                                                                                    29 \Z7,_61Z2_____________222346,949
Total maximum €xpost]re to risk 29.455.066 29.62lJ17

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the single largest risk for the Company's business; management therefore carefully manages its
exposure to credit risk.

The estimation of credit risk for risk management purposes is complex and involves the use of models, as the
risk varies depending on market conditions, expected cash flows and the passage of time. The assessment of
credit  risk  for  a  portfolio  of assets  entails  further  estimations  of the  likelihood  of defaults  occurring,  the
associated loss ratios and default correlations between counterparties.
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21.      Financial risk management (continued)

Limits

The Company structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted
in  relation to  one  borrower,  or groups  of borrowers  are  approved  reg.ularly  by  management.  Such  risks  are
monitored on a revolving basis and are subject to an annual, or more frequent, review.

Loan applications originating with the relevant client relationship managers are passed on to the relevant credit
committee for the approval of the credit limit.  Exposure to credit risk is  also managed,  in part,  by obtaining
collateral  as  well  as  corporate  and  personal  guarantees.  In  order  to  monitor exposure  to  credit  risk,  regular
reports  are  produced  by  the  credit  department's  officers  based  on  a  structured  analysis  focusing  on  the
customer's business and financial perfomance. Any significant interaction with customers with deteriorating
creditworthiness are reported to and reviewed by Management.

Expected credit loss (ECL) measurement

Ecf is a probability-weighted estimate of the present value of future cash shortfalls (i.e., the weighted average
of credit losses, with the respective risks of default occurring in a given time period used as weights). An ECL
measurement is unbiased and is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes.  ECL measurement is
based on four components used by the Company: Probability of Default ("PD"),

Exposure at Default ("BAD"), Loss Given Default ("LGD") and Discount Rate.

EAD is an estimate of exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected changes in the exposure
after  the  reporting  period,  including  repayments  of principal  and  interest,  and  expected  drawdowns  on
committed facilities. PD an estimate of the likelihood of default to occur over a given time period.  LGD is an
estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and
those  that  the  lender  would  expect  to  receive,  including  from  any  collateral.  It  is  usually  expressed  as  a

percentage of the EAD. The expected losses are discounted to present value at the end of the reporting period.
The discount rate represents the effective interest rate ("EIR") for the financial instrument or an approximation
thereof.

In  order to  calculate  ECL  an  institution  has  to  be  able  to  determine  the  probability  of default  in  a  lifetime
horizon (£i/cfj.me EC£) for exposures in stage 2 and in a one-year horizon (/2-mo#/A EC£ ) for those in stage
I. For the puii]ose of the IFRS 9 implementation, the estimation approach was applied.

Migration matrices were used for the entire portfolio to model transitions between final rating groups 0,  I, 2, 3
and default (days past due rating > 3).

One of the key requirements of lFRS 9 is inclusion of forward looking components. Usually, this is interpreted
as  necessity  to  adjust  the  estimates  along  with  expected  evolution  of economy  (so  called  macroeconomic
overlay). The comparatively easy and convenient way to include such adjustment to PD  lifetime estimates  is
usage of regression models that explain behaviour of historical defaults rates versus selected macroeconomic
variables. Such relationship (if statistically relevant for a given portfolio) should be used to adjust marginal PD
curves thus making it more point-in-time (up to possible extent).

For purposes of measuring PD, the Company defines default as a situation when the exposure meets one or
more of the following criteria:

• the borrower is more than 90 days past due on its contractual payments;

• the borrower meets the unlikeliness-to-pay criteria listed below:

- the Company was forced to restructure the debt;

- the borrower is deceased;

- the borrower is insolvent or it is becoming likely that the borrower will be insolvent;

- the loans originated at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.
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21.      Financial risk management (continued)

Expected credit loss (ECL) measurement (continued)

For purposes of disclosure, the Company  fully aligned the definition of default with the  definition  of credit-
impaired assets. The default definition stated above is applied to all types of financial assets of the Company.
The  assessment  whcther  or  not  there  has  been  a  significant  increase  in  credit  risk  ("SICR")  since  initial
recognition  is  performed  on  an  individual  basis  and  on  a  portfolio  basis.  For  loans  issued  to  corporate,  to
individuals  and  other  financial  assets,  SICR  is  assessed  either  on  a  portfolio  basis  or  an  individual  basis,
depending on the existence of scoring models. The criteria used to identify an SICR are monitored and reviewed
periodically for appropriateness by the management. The presumption, being that there have been significant
increases in credit risk since initial recognition when financial assets are more than 30 days past due, has not
been rebutted.

The Company considers a financial instrument to have experienced an SICR when one or more of the following
quantitative, qualitative or backstop criteria have been met:

For purposes of measuring PD, the Company defines default as a situation when the exposure meets one or
more of the following criteria (continued):

• 30 days past due;

• award of risk grade "Special monitoring";

• SICR based on relative threshold based on internal ratings;

• inclusion of loan into a watch list according to the internaL credit risk monitoring process;

• Relative  threshold  defined  on  the  basis  of a  portfolio  for  products  without  existing  scoring  models:  the
Company regularly monitors segments with increased credit risk (regions of higher credit risk, failed products,
products on which issuing was stopped) and considers such portfolios to have a SICR.

Level of ECL that is recognised in these financial statements depends on whether the credit risk of the borrower
has  increased  significantly  since  initial  recognition.  This  is  a  three-stage  model  for  ECL  measurement.  A
financial  instrument  that  is  not  credit-impaired  on  initial  recognition  and  its  credit  risk  has  not  increased
significantly since initial recognition has a credit loss allowance based on  12-month ECLs (Stage  I ).

If a  SICR  since  initial  recognition  is  identified,  the  financial  instrument  is  moved  to  Stage  2  but  is  not  yet
deemed to be credit-impaired and the loss allowance is based on lifetime ECLs.

If a financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is moved to Stage 3 and Loss allowance is
based on  lifetime ECLs.  The  consequence  of an asset being in  Stage  3  is that the  entity  ceases  to recognise
interest  income  based  on  gross  canying  value  and  applies  the  asset's  effective  interest  rate  to  the  carrying
amount, net of ECL, when calculating interest income.

If there is evidence that the SICR criteria are no longer met, the instrument is transferred back to Stage I. If an
exposure has been transferred to Stage 2 based on a qualitative indicator, the Company monitors whether that
indicator continues to exist or has changed.

The Company measures ECL on a portfolio basis: internal ratings are estimated on an individual basis but the
sane credit risk parameters (e.g. PD, LGD) will be applied during the process of ECL calculations for the same
credit risk ratings and homogeneous segments of the loan portfolio. This approach stratifies the loan pool  into
homogeneous segments based on borrower-specific information, such as delinquency status, the historical data
on losses, location and other predictive infomation.

When assessment is performed on a portfolio basis, the Company determines the staging of the exposures and
measures the loss allowance on a collective basis. The Company analyses its exposures by segments detemined
on  the  basis  of shared  credit  risk  characteristics,  such  that  exposures  within  a group  have  homogeneous  or
similar risks. The key shared credit characteristics considered are: type of customer (such as wholesale or retail),
product type, credit risk rating, date of initial recognition, tern to maturity, the quality of collateral and loan to
value  (LTV)  ratio.  The  different  segments  also reflect  differences  in  credit  risk  parameters  such  as  PD  and
LGD. The appropriateness of groupings is monitored and reviewed on a periodic basis by the Risk Management
Deparment.

32



"CITY FINANCE NBCO" LLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENI)ED DECEMBER 31, 2024

A=erbaijaninap3± uylless otherw `Ise slaled)(Amounls presen(ed are in

21.      FitLancial risk management (continued)

Expected credit loss (ECL) measi]rement (continued)

In general, ECL is the sum of the multiplications of the following credit risk parameters:  EAD, PD and LGD,
that al.e defined as explained above, and discounted to present value using the  instmment's  effective interest
rate. The ECL  is determined by predicting credit risk parameters (EAD,  PD and LGD) for each future year
during  the  lifetime  period  for  each  individual  exposure  or  collective  segment.  These  three  components  are
multiplied together and adjusted for the likelihood of survival (i.e. the exposure has been repaid or defaulted in
an earlier month).

This effectively calculates an ECL for each future period, that is then discounted back to the reporting date and
summed  up.  The  discount  rate  used  in  the  ECL  calculation  is  the  original  effective  interest  rate  or  an
approximation thereof.

The key principles of calculating the credit risk parameters

The EADs are determined based on the expected payment profile, that varies by product type. BAD is based on
the contractual repayments owed by the borrower over a 12-month or lifetime basis for amortising products and
bullet repayment loans. This will also be adjusted for any expected overpayments made by a borrower. Early
repayment or refinancing assumptions are also incorporated into the calculation.

Two types of PDs are used for calculating ECLs:  12-month and lifetime PD. An assessment of a  12-month PD
is based on the latest available historic default data and adjusted for supportable forward-looking infomation
when appropriate.  Lifetime PDs represent the estimated probability of a default occurring over the remaining
life of the financial instrument and it is a sum of the  12 months PDs over the life of the instrument.

The Company uses different statistical approaches depending on the segment and product type to calculated
lifetime PDs, such as the extrapolation of 12-month PDs based on migration matrixes, developing lifetime PD
curves based on the historical default data.

LGD represents the Company's expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by the
type of counterparty, type and seniority of the claim, and the availability of collateral or other credit support.
The 12-month and lifetime LGDs are determined based on the factors that impact the expected recoveries after
adefaultevent.TheapproachtoLGDmeasurementiscalculationofLGDonaportfoliobasisbasedonrecovery
statistics; with details below:

• In the case of LGD modelling the targeted variable is a lifetime probability of reaching by a defaulted exposure
two  extreme  (absorbing)  states  - repayment  or write  off.  LGD  is just  a probability  weighted  average  loss
conditional on two possible ultimate states -i.e.: 0% loss in case of repayment and  100% loss in case of write
off which is identified as rating 9. As a consequence, the LGD parameter is just probability of migration to the
state 9. Therefore, migration matrices approach was employed where ratings 4 - 9 were treated as separate states
rather than grouped into one default state.

• In  this  method  rating  9  is  assumed to  be  an  absorbing  state  and  defaults  with  ratings  4-8  will  have  their
respective LGD values estimated as a lifetime transition into state 9,

• The rationale behind the treatment of long remaining exposure values as fully lost comes from the fact that
all standard recovery options should be already exercised and should already have their reflection in data that
are basis for LGD estimation.

Refer to the ranking table in above Credi./ ri`s4 gredj.#g s)/s/em section.

Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

The   assessment   of  SICR  and  the   calculation   of  ECL's   both   incorporate   supportable   forward-looking
information. The Company identified certain key economic variables that correlate with developments in credit
risk and ECL's.
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21.      Fjnancia[ risk management (continued)

Market risk

The  Company  takes  on  exposure  to  market  risks.  Market  risks  arise  from  open  positions  in  (a) foreign
currencies, (b)  interest bearing  assets and  liabilities,  all  of which  are exposed to general  and  specific  market
movements. The goal of the Company's market risk management is to limit and reduce the amount of possible
losses  on open market positions that may be incurred by the Company due to negative changes in currency
exchange rates and interest rates.

The Management sets  limits on the value of risk that may be accepted,  which  is  monitored on  a daily basis.
However, the use of this approach does not prevent losses outside of these limits in the event of more significant
market movements.

Currency risk

The Company takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on
its financial position and cash flows. In respect of currency risk, management sets limits on the level of exposure
by currency and in total for both overnight and intra-day positions, which are monitored daily. The Company
does not deal in any derivative instruments for speculative or hedging purposes.

The table below summarises the Company's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at the end of the
reporting peri od:

At December 31, 2024

A:ZEN:IN
US Dollars

At December 31, 2023
Monetary         Moneta ry                                        Moi]etary           Moneta ry

financial            financial                                            finamcial              financial
assets            liabilities          Net osition                 assets              liabilities        Net osition

29,434,057
21,009

(9,625,587)
5,520,327

19,808,470      24,476,665
5,499,318 159

(10,635,144)
2,083,945

13,841,521

2,083,786
29,455,066 15,14S'914 14,309,152      24,476 12,719,089 11,757,735

The  following table presents  sensitivities of profit and  loss to reasonably possible changes  in exchange rates
applied at the period end date, with all other variables held constant:

At Dec€IDt)er 31, 2024 At Deceml)er 31, 2023
Impact on                                                         Impact on

rofit or loss rorit or loss
(416,757)

416,757

US Dollar strengthening by 20%
US Dollar weakenin

( I,099,864)
I .099,864

Oner than as a result of any impact on the Company's profit or loss, there is no other impact on the Company's
equity as a result of such change in exchange rates. The exposure was calculated only for monetary balances
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the Company.

The Company makes the following assumptions when carrying out its sensitivity analysis:

• The sensitivity analysis shows the effcots of changes that are considered to be reasonably possible over the

period until the Company will next present these disclosures, which is usually its next annual reporting period;

• The Company discloses only the effects of the changes at the limits of the reasonably possible range of the
relevant risk variable, rather than all reasonably possible changes.
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21.      Financial risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Company takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates
on  its  flnancial  position and cash  flows.  Interest margins  may  increase as a result  of such  changes,  but  may
reduce or create losses in the event that unexpected movements arise.

The Management monitors on a daily basis and set limits on the level of mismatch of interest rate repricing that
may be undertaken.

The table below summarises the Company's exposure to interest rate risks. The table presents the aggregated
amounts  of the  Company's  financial  assets  and  liabilities  at canying  amounts,  categorised by  the  earlier of
contractual interest re-pricing or maturity dates.

On demai)d and           From  I to              From 6 to        More than
to  I  months              6 months              12 months                  I ear                      Total

D€cemb€r 31, 2024
Total financial assets
Total  financial  liabilities

2,555,582
668,072

9,257,332
4,231,786

7.971,728 9,670,424 29,455,066

Net interest sensitivity gap
at Decem her 31, 2024 I,887.510 5,025546 2,425'611 4,970,484 14jo9'lsl
December 31. 2023
Total financial assets

Total  financial  liabilities

2,902,702

(580,756)

7,923 ,757               6, 773 ,0 88            6, 877,277              24,476, 824

(3,213,271)             (5,750,966)          (3,174,097)          (12,719,090)
Net interest sensitivity gap
at Decetnt)€r 31, 2023 2,21.946 4,710,486 I,022.122             3,703,180 11,757,734

The Company's profit is not exposed to AZN market interest rate changes because the Company does not have
variable interest assets or liabilities denominated in AZN.

The Company monitors interest rates for its financial instruments. The table below summarizes interest rates
based on reports reviewed by key management personnel:

December 31, 2024                              December 3l
ln % p a.

Assets
Loans and advances to customers

AZN                         USD                        AZN                       USD

5 %-40%                                 -                  6%-3 8%

Liabilities
Lease liability
Tern borrowin

10.1 %

11%               5.5%-6.5%
10. I %

11%                           5.5%

The sign "-"in the table above means that the Company does not have the respective assets or liabilities in the
conesponding currency.

All other financial assets and financial liabilities are non-interest bearing.

Geographical risk concentrations

TheCompanyconductslendingactivitiesonlywithinterritoryofAzerbaijanRepublicasatDecember31,2024
and December 31, 2023, the Company's all financial assets and liabilities are subject to  100% concentration to
the Republic of Azerbaijan, which represents a significant geographical concentration in one region.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity  risk  is  the  risk that  the  Company  will  encounter difficulty  in  meeting  obligations  arising  from  its
financial  liabilities.  It refers  to the  availability of sufficient  funds to meet financial  commitments  associated
with  financial  instruments  as  they  actually  fall  due.  Liquidity  risk  exists  when  the  maturities  of assets  and
liabilities do not match.
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21.      Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The  matching  and/or  controlled  mismatching  of the  maturities  and  interest  rates  of assets  and  liabilities  is
fundamental to the management of financial institutions.

In  order to manage  liquidity  risk, the  Company  performs  daily  monitoring of future  expected cash  flows  on
clients'  and  banking  operations,  which  is  part  of the  assets/liabilities  management  process.  They  also  set

parameters for the risk diversification of the liability base.

The Company's liquidity policy is comprised of the following:

-Projecting cash flows and maintaining the level of liquid assets necessary to ensure liquidity in various time-
bands;

-Maintaining a funding plan commensurate with the Company's strategic goals;

-Maintaining  a  diverse  range  of funding  sources  thereby  increasing  the  Company's  borrowing  capacity,

domestically as well as from foreign sources;

-Maintaining highly liquid and high-quality assets;

-Adjusting its product base by time bands against available funding sources; and

-Constant monitoring of asset and liability structures by time-bands.

The  following  tables  show  carrying  amounts  of liabilities  of the  Company  including  potential  future  non-
accrued  interest  ranked  on the  basis  of the remaining  period  from  the  period  end  date to  their  contractual
maturity date.

The undiscounted maturity analysis of financial liabilities at December 31, 2024 is as follows:

On demand
andupto|          Fromlt°         From6to         Moretlian

months           6 months         12 months                   I ear                    Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and leasin to customers

327,394
2,228,188 9,257,332            7,971,728

-                   327,394

9,670,424            29,127,672

9.670,424           29,4S5,066
Total potentin] future |iayments
for rinancial assets 2.555582          9,257j32 7,971,728

Financial lial}ilities
Tern tiorrowings
Debt decurities in issue
Amounts due to related parties
Other liabilities
Lease liabili

(229,671)             (993,335)        (2,665,788)           (3,371,992)
-            (I,841.223)

(396,000)        (I,886,333)        (2,876,000)           (I,232,239)
(113,054)

256,957

(7,260,786)
( I,841,223)

(6.390,572)
( 113,054)
383,265

Total I)otentia] ftlture payments
for rinancial liabilities 749'251 2,932,296 5.604,942 6'702'411 15,988,900
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21.      Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The undiscounted maturity analysis of financial liabilities at December 31, 2023  is as follows:

OD demand
andupto|         Fromlto         From6to          Morethan

months           6 montl]s         12 months                    I car                   Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents                                         274,368                                                                                                -                  274,368
Loans and leasin to ciistomers                               3,311 663             9,199,001             8,056,923 8 ,779, 3 62           29,346,949
Total potential future paymei]ts
for financial assets 3,S86,031            9,199,001            8,056,923              8,77962          29,62ljl7

Financial liabilities
Tern borrowings
Amounts due to related parties
Other liabilities
Lease liabili

(lot,692)
(355,000)
(133,690)

( 1,107,434)

(2, I 78,928)
(I,444,407)
(4,357,856)

(1,559,543)

( 1,452,618)

(4,213,076)
(8,344,402)

(133,690)
495,411

Total potential future payments
for financial liabilities 3,329,S50 5,865,416 3J95,425 13,186579

The  Company  does  not  use  the  above  maturity  analysis  based  on  undiscounted  contractual  maturities  of
liabilities to manage liquidity.  Instead, the Company monitors expected maturities and the resulting expected
liquidity gap as follows:

On demand
and up to         From I to          From 6 to            More tlian
I  months           6 months          12 months                     I ea I                    Total

December 31, 2024
Total  financial assets
Total  financia]  liabilities

2,555,582 9,257,332 7.97\,J2:8
604,942

9,670,424 29,455,066
749,251

Net interest sensitivity gap at
December 3 I, 2024 I,806J3l 6325,036            2,366,786 2.968.013         28,705,815

Decem I)er 31, 2023
Total  financial assets

Total  financial  liabilities
3,586,031           9,199,001                8,056,923                  8,779,362             29,621,317

596,187 3,329,550 5,865,416 3,395,426 13,186,579
Net interest sensitivity gap at
December31 2023                                               2 844         5,869,451              2191,507                 S 936         16,434,738

The  matching  and/or  controlled  mismatching  of the  maturities  and  interest  rates  of assets  and  liabilities  is
fundamental to the management of the Company's liquidity risk. It is unusual for financial corporations ever to
be  completely  matched  since  business  transacted  is  often  of an  uncertain  term  and  of different  types.  An
unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but can also increase the risk of losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities
as they mature, are important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Company and its exposure to changes in
interest and exchange rates.

Management  considers  that  the   current  favorable  macroeconomic  environment   for  financial   institutions
operating  in Azerbaijan,  positive  cash  flows,  the profitability  of operations  and  access  to  foreign  financial
resources as required significantly decrease the risk of losses arising from current liquidity mismatches.
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22.      Management of capital

The Company's objectives when managing capital are (i) to comply with the minimum capital requirements set
by Central Bank of the Republic of Azerbaijan (CBAR), (ii) to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as
a going  concern  and  (iii)  to  maintain  a  sufficient  capital  base  ratios  in  order to  support  its  business  and  to
maximize shareholders' value.

There   are   no   financial   covenants   stipulated   by   borrowing   agreements   in   respect   of  capital   adequacy
requirements.

23.      Contingencies and commitments

Legal proceedings

From time to time and in the normal course of business, claims against the Company may be received. On the
basis of its own estimates and both internal and extemal professional advice the Company's management is of
the opinion that no material losses will be incurred in respect of claims and accordingly no provision has been
made in these financial statements.

Tax contingencies

Azerbaijani tax, currency and customs legislation is subject to varying interpretations, and changes, which can
occur frequently. Management's interpretation of such legislation, as applied to the transactions and activity of
the  Company,  may  be  challenged  by  the  relevant  state  authorities.  Recent  events  within  the  Republic  of
Azerbaijan suggest that the tax authorities may be taking a more assertive position in their interpretation of the
legislation and assessments,  and it is possible that transactions and activities that have not been challenged in
the past may  be challenged.  As  a result,  significant additional taxes,  penalties  and  interest may  be  assessed.
Fiscal periods remain open to review by the authorities  in respect of taxes for three calendar years preceding
the year of review. Under certain circumstances reviews may cover longer periods.

24.      Fair value disclosures

Fair value measul.ements are analysed by level in the fair value hierarchy as follows:

(i) level one are measurements at quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

(ii)  level  two  measurements  are  valuations  techniques  with  all  material  inputs  observable  for  the  asset  or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices), and

(iii) level three measurements are valuations not based on observable market data (that is. unobservable inputs).

Management applies judgement  in categorising financial  instruments  using the  fair value  hierarchy.  If a fair
value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment,  that measurement is a Level  3
measurement. The significance ofa valuation input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety.

Assets and liabilities not measured at fair value but for wliicli fair value is disclosed

Fair values analysed by level in the fair value hierarchy and carrying value of assets not measured at fair value
are as follows:

Decem her 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Level I                 Level 3                                          Level  I                 Level 3

fair                     fair         Carrying                  fair                      fa ir          Carrying
value                  Value                  value               value                    value                   value

Financial assets
- Loans and leasing to

customers
- Cash and cash

uivalents 327,394

29,127,672          29,127,672 24,202,456      24,202,456

327,394           274,368                                  -              274,368
Total r]naneinl assets                    327J94 29,127,672         29,455,066          274j68           24.202,456      24,476,824
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24.       Fair value disclosures (continued)

Fair values analysed by level  in the fair value hierarchy  and canying value of liabilities not measured at fair
value are as follows:

December 31, 2024                                                  December 31, 2023
Level  I                    Level 3                                         Level I                   Level 3

fair                         fair          Carrying                fair                        fai r            Cal.rying
value                       value                   value              value                      yalue                     value

Financial liabilities
-Term borrow ings
- Debt decurities in issue
-Amounts due to related

parties
-Other liabilities

-Lease  liabili

(8,409,006)        (8,409,006)
(I,841,223)         (I,841,223)

(6,390,572)         (6,390,572)

(113,054)               (113,054)

(233,282)             (233,282)

(3,909,387)           (3,909,387)

( 8 ,344,402)          ( 8,344,402)
( 133,690)                (133,690)
331,6 I 0 331,610

Total r.namcial liabilities 16,987,137 16,987,137 12'719,089 719,089

25.      Related party transactions

Parties are generally considered to be related if the parties are under common control or one party has the ability
to  control  the  other  party  or  can  exercise  significant  influence  over  the  other  party  in  making  financial  or
operational  decisions.  In  considering  each  possible  related  party  relationship,  attention  is  directed  to  the
substance of the relationship, not merely the legal form.

At December 31, 2024, the outstanding balances with related parties were as follows:

Entities under common control

Loans and leasing to customers                                                                                                                                                              I,370,657
Amounts due to related party                                                                                                                                                                  6,390,572
Lease liability (233,282)

At December 31, 2023, the outstanding balances with related parties were as follows:

Entities under common control

Loans and leasing to customers
Amounts due to related party
Lease  liability

I ,241 ,213

8,344,402
331,610

The income and expense items with related parties for the year 2024 were as follows:

Entities under common control
Interest income                                                                                                                                                                                                           102,968
Interest expense on  lease liability 27,979
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25.      Related party transactions (continued)

The income and expense items with related parties for 2023 were as follows:

Entities under common control
Interest income                                                                                                                                                                                                                    78,136
Interest ex ense on lease  ]iabilit

Key management compensation is presented below:

Year ended                       Year ended
December 31, 2024         Deceml)er 31, 2023

Salaries                                                                                                                                                                           ( 160,871 )                                    (98,429)
ension and social securit

26.    Events after the reporting period

There is no significant event after reporting date.
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